ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
JO NT MEETI NG
SENATE RESOURCES STANDI NG COW TTEE
HOUSE RESOURCES STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 5, 2014
12: 01 p. m

MEMBERS PRESENT

SENATE RESOURCES
Senator Cathy G essel, Chair
Senator Fred Dyson, Vice-Chair
Senator Cick Bishop
Senator Lesil MGQuire
Senat or Anna Fai rcl ough
Senator Hollis French

HOUSE RESOURCES
Representative Eric Feige, Co-Chair
Representati ve Dan Saddl er, Co-Chair
Representati ve Peggy W1 son, Vice-Chair
Representati ve Geran Tarr

MEMBERS ABSENT

SENATE RESOURCES
Senat or Peter M cciche

HOUSE RESOURCES
Representati ve M ke Hawker
Representati ve Crai g Johnson
Representative Kurt O son
Representati ve Paul Seaton
Representative Scott Kawasaki

COW TTEE CALENDAR

ANNUAL M NI NG | NDUSTRY OVERVI EW

- HEARD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

JT. S/'H RES COMW TTEES -1- February 5, 2014



No previous action to record
W TNESS REQ STER

KAREN MATTHI AS, Executive Director

Counci | of Al aska Producers

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided an overview of Alaska's mning
i ndustry.

DEANTHA CROCKET, Executive Director

Al aska M ners Associ ation

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided an overview of Alaska's mning
i ndustry.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

12: 01: 00 PM

CHAIR CATHY G ESSEL called the joint conmttee neeting of the
Senate and House Resources Standing Committees to order at 12:01
p.m Senators present at the call to order were Senators
Fai rcl ough, Vice-Chair Dyson, and Chair G essel. Representatives
present at the call to order were Representatives Tarr, Vice-
Chair WIlson, and Co-Chair Feige.

ANNUAL M NI NG | NDUSTRY OVERI VEW

12:01: 49 PM
CHAI R G ESSEL announced that the joint commttee neeting's only
order of business would be the annual M ning Industry Overview.

12: 02: 25 PM

KAREN MATTHI AS, Executive Director, Council of Al aska Producers
(CAP), Anchorage, Al aska, explained that CAP is a statew de,
nonprofit trade association for the large netal nines and
advanced projects in Al aska.

12: 02: 41 PM

DEANTHA CROCKETT, Executive Director, Al aska Mners Association
(AMA), Anchorage, Al aska, stated that AMA has been around since
1939. She explained that AMA is the unbrell a-association for the
m ning industry and represents the hard-rock m nes and projects
in the state: coal projects, placer mners, contractors, and
busi nesses that work with the mning industry.

JT. S/'H RES COMW TTEES - 2- February 5, 2014



M5. CROCKETT referred to a PowerPoint presentation [Slide 2,
"Why Do W Mne?"] She referred to her smartphone as an exanple
of the reason for mning. She pointed out that a smartphone
contains five raw materials that are found in Al aska: platinum
al um num copper, gold, and silver. She noted that gold and
silver are actively mned in Al aska.

[Slide 3, "Wy Do W Mne?'] She noted that mnerals are an
inmportant point in the recreation of our lives as well. She
explained that mnerals are literally in every form of
transportati on node used.

12: 04: 09 PM

[Slide 4, "Why Do W Mne?"] She pointed out that mnerals are
used in products that one hopes that they do not have to use

She noted that zinc is used to galvanize roadside guardrails

She disclosed that Alaska has one of the world' s largest zinc
mnes at the Red Dog Mne (RDM. She called attention to netals
used in lifesaving applications: gold in autonobile airbags and
silver in the lining of heart val ves.

[Slide 5, "Wnd Turbine."] She said nmetals are used in renewabl e
and affordable energy solutions. She noted that the Fire Island
Wnd Project near Anchorage is a local exanple of netals being
used in wnd turbines for renewabl e energy.

She stated that mnerals are a very inportant part of our life.
She asserted that no matter what an individual's political
affiliation, a disconnection persists between the nmetals used on
a daily basis and the act of mning itself.

12: 04: 51 PM
SENATOR BI SHOP joined joint commttee neeting.

[Slide 6, "Alaska has a Wrld-Class Permtting System"] M.
Crockett said Al aska does have a world-class permtting system
She remarked that mnerals are needed and AVMA knows that mning
can be done and is being done right in Al aska.

VI CE- CHAI R DYSON asked Ms. Crockett to confirm that she clearly
inferred that Alaska's permtting systemis a good one.

M5. CROCKETT answered yes.

SENATOR DYSON asked if Alaska's permtting systemis one of the
best .

JT. S/'H RES COMW TTEES - 3- February 5, 2014



M5. CROCKETT replied yes. She asserted that Alaska is a world-
cl ass system

VICE-CHAIR DYSON asked how Alaska attained the world-class
permtting level. He remarked that Al aska was generally not that
good with permtting.

M5. CROCKETT replied that she has seen a very concentrated
effort by Alaska's |awmkers to neke all resource industries
operate to the very best they can and noted that a track record
has been exhi bited over several decades.

VI CE-CHAIR DYSON commented that |legislators probably do not
deserve the major part of the credit. He noted that credit lies
with agencies in addition to enthusiastic support from nost
Al askans. He called attention to alum num and asked why he had
never seen the netal listed as a state asset.

12: 06: 29 PM
M5. CROCKETT replied that alumnum is found in Al aska, but no
proj ects were being pursued.

VI CE- CHAI R DYSON asked how much al umi num exists and where it is
| ocat ed.

M5. CROCKETT replied that she does not know how rmuch al um num
exists and noted that the netal deposits are not concentrated in
a geographi c area.

She continued that the permtting process has been a
col | aborative effort for several decades between |awrakers, the
adm nistration, and the industry. She set forth that inproving
the permtting process continues as technol ogy advances.

[Slide 7, "Mning Day at the Fair."] She explained that CAP and
AMA strive to bring the mning-reality to the general public.
She pointed out that CAP and AMA reach out to children through
the Alaska Resource Education Program and the Mning Day
sponsorship at the Fairbanks and Palner fairs. She explained
that AMA's intent at the fairs is to talk to children and show
them how they use mnerals on a daily basis. She said AWA' s
concerted effort is to make sure that children know that there
is an understanding about the vigor of the mning system and
what it really neans to mne in Al aska.

M5. MATTHI AS pointed out Alaska's mning facts and chal |l enges as
fol | ows:

JT. S/'H RES COMW TTEES -4- February 5, 2014



1. Al aska has rich resources,

2. Alaska has a rigorous permtting system that ensures mning
is done right, and

3. Alaska faces challenges due to a lack of infrastructure to
renote |locations, high costs, and volatile netal market
prices.

12: 08: 24 PM
SENATOR MCGUI RE j oi ned the neeti ng.

[Slide 8 "Mning Activity in Alaska."] M. MATTH AS announced
that she wll provide an overview for Alaska' s six producing
m nes and 300 snmal | placer-m ne operations.

12: 09: 00 PM
SENATOR FRENCH j oi ned the neeting.

[Slide 9, "Red Dog Mne (RDM-Northwest Alaska."] M. Mtthias
poi nted out that nodern netal mning in Alaska is a very young
i ndustry. She noted that the oldest of the five nmetal mnes is
RDM which started production in 1989. She noted that Al aska's
netal mines were all permtted after the National Environmenta
Policy Act (NEPA) cane into effect in 1970. The five netal m nes
were permtted under a very nodern regulatory system

She detail ed RDM as foll ows:

* Located in Northwest Al aska near Kotzebue on NANA Regi ona
Cor poration | and;

* One of the largest zinc mnes in the world;
« Enpl oys 639, 56 percent are NANA sharehol ders;

* No mgjor road system zinc concentrate, supplies, and
peopl e are transported by sea or air.

She detailed RDM s 2013 operational activities as foll ows:

e Three nonth opportunity-window for shipping concentrate
when the port is ice-free;

* Loaded 253 barges that filled 24 ships with concentrate;

* Received 20 mllion gallons of diesel fuel, 4 container
ships with 2,500+ containers plus equi pnent.

She noted that nothing is shipped or is received until the
Subsi stence Conmittee gives its approval.

JT. S/'H RES COMW TTEES - 5- February 5, 2014



CHAI R G ESSEL asked what rol e the Subsistence Commttee plays.

M5. MATTHI AS replied that the Subsistence Commttee has been an
integral part of RDM operations. She explained that the
Subsi stence Committee offices are located at RDM to ensure that
subsi st ence needs are understood and taken into account.

12:11: 27 PM

[Slide 11, "Usibelli Coal Mne (UCM-Healy."] She said UCM is
Al aska's only operating coal mne. She provided UCM production
details as foll ows:

* Produces 2 mllion tons of coal per year,

e 50 percent of the production is exported and 50 percent is
used in-state, and

« 30 percent of UCM s  coal fuels Interior Al aska' s
electricity.

VI CE-CHAIR DYSON asserted that Alaska has world-class coa

reserves. He commented that nationally, a significant negative
reaction to coal exists as both a fuel source and a resource. He
noted that attention 1is not given to clean-coal pl ant
devel opnent. He pointed out that the majority of UCMs coal that
is shipped out of the state goes to overseas markets where a
huge demand exists. He asked for a comment on the internationa

coal nmarket and what the Legislature can do to help the coal
i ndustry.

12:12: 25 PM
CO CHAI R SADDLER j oi ned the neeting.

M5. CROCKETT voiced that the U S. federal governnent has not
done a very good job of trying to provide affordable coal to
U S citizens. She said there are nations that do want to burn
coal and provide affordable energy to their citizens. She stated
that she is happy that there are other global sources that do
want UCM s coal

VI CE- CHAI R DYSON addressed the Canadian coal mning industry and
asked what the Canadians have done wth natural resource
extraction tax benefits that make investnment in Canadian m ning
so attractive.

12: 14: 44 PM

M5. MATTHI AS responded that |ike the U S., Canada is a federa
gover nnment system and natural resources cone under the
responsibility of the provinces. She explained that |ike Al aska

JT. S/'H RES COMW TTEES - 6- February 5, 2014



in managing its resources, Canadian provinces are able to offer
tax incentives and other nechanisns to encourage or discourage
devel opment. She added that at the federal |evel, Canada used to
have an extremely high corporate inconme tax and over the last 10
or 15 years it has gone down significantly. She pointed out that
in 2013, Canada's corporate income tax was at 15 percent, a
| evel that provided a real incentive for conpanies |ooking at
Canadi an i nvestnments. She noted that Canada al so has had vari ous
tax incentives including flowthrough shares for exploration
incentives. She divulged that Canadian tax incentives have
changed in the last 18 nonths due partly to federal budget
deficit reduction.

12:16: 19 PM
VICE-CHAIR DYSON noted that flowthrough shares allows mne
devel opnment expenses to flowthrough as a tax benefit for
investors and the end result has been a huge boon to Canadi an
i nvest ment .

M5. MATTHIAS answered yes. She noted that the flowthrough
benefit system has changed over the |ast 18 nonths.

[Slide 12, "Fort Knox Mne (FKM -Fairbanks."] She said FKMis a
surface gold mne that has beneficial attributes as foll ows:

» Located on the road network,

» Accesses the power grid,

* Located just outside of Fairbanks which allows enployees to
drive to and fromwork every day,

e 100 percent of FKMs 630 enployees live in the Fairbanks
North Star Borough (FNSB)

* FKMis FNSB' s | argest property tax payer,

* FKM enpl oyees buy houses, pay property taxes, and supports
| ocal businesses, and

* FKM poured their 6 mllionth ounce of gold since operations
comenced in 1996.

She noted that FKM faces energy cost challenges where 2012
nonthly bills for electricity and diesel fuel averaged $4
mllion each

12:18: 31 PM
[Slide 13, "Pogo M ne-Fairbanks (PGW-Delta Junction."] She
expl ai ned PGM as foll ows:

 Underground gold m ne,

JT. S/'H RES COMW TTEES -7 February 5, 2014



« Enmpl oys 320 enpl oyees plus contractors, and
 Produced 314, 000 ounces of gold in 2013.

M5. MATTHI AS revealed that PGV nmakes a real effort to buy
locally. She noted that PGM spent $127 mllion with al nbst 300
Al aska vendors and contractors in 2012.

12:19: 14 PM
[Slide 14, "G eens Creek Mne (GCM-Juneau."] She explained GCM
as follows:

 Underground polynetallic mne;

e Produces silver, zinc, lead, and gol d;

* One of the world's top ten silver producers;

e 400 enpl oyees; and

* Has access to "interruptible rate" hydro-electric power
from Juneau.

She noted that GCM had a nilestone in 2014 where the U S. Forest
Service issued a Record of Decision that was upheld through the
federal appeals process for their tailings facility expansion.
She added that |ocal, state, and federal |evel permts nust be
obtained prior to GCMs tailings facility expansion.

[SIide 15, "Kensington Gold Mne (KGV-Juneau."] She explained
KGM as fol | ows:

* Underground gold m ne,
 Enpl oys over 300 enpl oyees,
* Relies entirely on diesel fuel.

She revealed that GCM and KGM are the largest private sector
enpl oyers and property tax payers in Juneau.

She called attention to the fact that fuel costs are a huge
expense for all mnes. She stated that mning projects are
| ooking at every power option to be nore efficient and reduce
their production costs.

12:21: 00 PM
[Slide 16, "Upper Kobuk M neral Projects (UKMP) - Nort hwest
Al aska."] Ms. Crockett announced that she will provide a rundown

on sone of the state's advanced exploration projects. She said
UKMP is situated on NANA land in the Anbler Mning D strict
(AMD). She noted that AVMD is primarily a copper district with
exploration occurring for over four decades. She said renewed

JT. S/'H RES COMW TTEES - 8- February 5, 2014



AMD drilling conmmenced in 2004. In 2013, UKMP had 80 enpl oyees
on site with 53 percent NANA sharehol der hires.

[Slide 17, "Livengood Gold Project-Fairbanks (LGP)."] M.
Crockett explained that the LGP deposit was originally a placer
mning operation for gold that transitioned to a large mning
project when the |load was discovered in 2003. She noted that a
2013 feasibility study by International Tower Hill M nes
revealed that sonme LGP operational costs were quite high and
efficiency options continue to be reviewed. She noted that 450
new jobs to the Fairbanks area would be created if LGP canme on-
l'ine.

[SIide 18, "Wshbone Hi Il Coal Mne (WHCM-Palner."] She said
VWHCM is a coal project being pursued by the Usibelli Coal M ne
Corporation. She detailed that WHCMis in a historic coal mning
district that was initially mned in 1916. She inforned the
joint conmittee that WHCM has been halted for the past two years
due to an injunction. She said when WHCM cones on-line, up to
125 jobs will be created for Mat-Su Borough residents.

[Slide 19, "Donlin Gold Mne (DG -Kuskokwim" She explained
that DGV has been in exploration since 1998 and permts were
initiated in late 2012. She noted that DGMs canp region has up
to a 90 percent Calista Corporation hire rate. She inforned the
joint commttee that 1400 jobs are expected when DGV cones on-
line. She added that DGM is |ooking at powering the project
through a 313 mle gas pipeline from Cook Inlet. She explained
that DGVMs pipeline would provide cheaper energy to Kkeep
operating costs down and provide a |legacy infrastructure that a
m ning project can bring to a region. She noted that Juneau is a
community that has benefited from hydropower due to mning. She
said AVA is hopeful that the DGM pipeline branches into other
areas of the state where other energy sources are used.

12:23: 30 PM
CHAIR GQESSEL noted that DGM was recently nanmed National
Enpl oyer of the Year in 2013.

M5. CROCKETT confirmed that DGM was naned the 2013 National
Enpl oyer of the Year [by the National Association of State
Wor kf orce Agencies.] She called attention to DGMs efforts to
get to the 90 percent Calista sharehol der participation |evel
and try to get people within the region to be enployed at their

canp.

JT. S/'H RES COMW TTEES -9- February 5, 2014



[Slide 20, "Pebble Mning Project (PM)-Southwest Al aska."] M.
Crockett said PMP is a copper, gold, and nol ybdenum project that
was discovered in 1987 on State of Al aska land. She revealed to
the joint commttee that over $150 million has been spent on
environmental studies since 2002. She detailed that PMP can
provi de 1000 potential jobs for the region.

[Slide 21, "Chuitna Coal Project (CCP)-Southcentral Al aska."]
She said CCP is in the permtting process with a decision
expected in late 2014, early 2015. She detailed that CCP has the
potential to bring 350 jobs to the West Cook Inlet Region.

[Slide 22, "Ni black Mne Project (NWP)-Prince of Wales Island."]
She said NW was a polynetallic deposit where copper, gold,
silver, and zinc would be mned. She explained that NW
expl oration has been happening for over 30 years and was ranped
up in 2009. She revealed that NMP has the potential to bring 200
jobs to the Ketchi kan-Prince of WAl es area.

[ SIide 23, "Bokan-Dotson Ridge Project (BDRP)-Prince of Wales."]
She said BDRP is a rare earth element (REE) deposit on Prince of
Wal es |Island. She explained that REEs are things that make cel
phones vibrate or show the red in plasma TVs. She asserted that
REE mining is of national interest and noted that the US. is
nearly 100 percent reliant on foreign sources.

12: 25: 22 PM
VICE-CHAIR DYSON asked if the federal governnent 1is doing
anything materially to incentivize REE mining in North Anerica.

M5. CROCKETT replied that AMA's del egation has sponsored bills
to build roads from Prince of Wales comunities to BDRP and NWP.
She noted that a critical mnerals bill was currently before
Congress to make federal permtting easier.

VI CE- CHAIR DYSON responded that there is always hope that the
federal government would be very actively seeking REE that are
needed to support the country's lifestyle. He asked if the
federal government was working towards REE sel f-sufficiency.

MS. CROCKETT answered no. She said she was not aware of a REE
sel f-sufficiency plan.

CHAIR G ESSEL noted a recent commttee neeting where Fairbanks
was being considered as a location for F-35 Fighter squadrons.
She pointed out that the advanced technology used in the F-35
depend on REE.

JT. S/'H RES COMW TTEES -10- February 5, 2014



M5. CROCKETT replied that the U S. Departnent of Defense is a
huge REE <consuner. She said she hopes that the federa
government | ooks kindly upon having a donmestic REE source and
that Alaska has an opportunity to be one of the donestic
sour ces.

12:27:19 PM
She called attention to BDRP and noted that the project has the
potential to bring 190 jobs to the Prince of Wl es region.

SENATOR FAI RCLOUGH asked if an analysis was nmade on the types of
REEs that possibly could be extracted from BDRP

M5. CROCKETT replied that light and heavy REEs are found at
BDRP. She noted that she will provide the joint conmttee with
an REE |ist at BDRP

VICE-CHAIR WLSON noted that a certain mne was converting to
natural gas to power its generators. She explained that the
technol ogy used at the mine could be used on a smaller scale for
homeowner s.

12: 30: 14 PM
M5. CROCKETT commented that the exanple provided by Vice-Chair
W son hi ghlights anot her benefit from m ning.

SENATOR MCGUI RE added that BDRP is considering |iquefied natural
gas (LNG deliveries from WesPac Mdstream LLC that could |ead
to partnering with other Al aska coastal comunities. She pointed
out the connectivity between resources and noted that many
m ning opportunities in Al aska get shutout due to diesel's high
energy costs.

[SIide 24, "300+ Placer Mnes."] M. Crockett inforned the joint
commttee that placer mning is a traditional nethod of mning
done without blasting or chem cal processing. She expl ained that
placer mning is done by noving dirt and using water to separate
the gold. She noted that 100,000 ounces of gold were mned by
approximately 300 placer mners in 2013. She said the inpact
from placer mning may be nore on the individual and the famly
| evel, but very inportant none then |ess.

[Slide 25, "No Single Permit to Mne: there are many permts and
aut hori zations. "] Ms. Matthias asserted that environnenta
responsibility is the priority that underlines econom c inpact.
She said as Al askans, mning has to be done right wth an

JT. S/'H RES COMW TTEES -11- February 5, 2014



expectation for rigorous, consistent, and transparent oversight.
She stated that every mning conmpany operating in Al aska knows
that it needs to act responsibly in order to earn comunity
support for mning activity.

12: 32: 38 PM
M5. MATTHI AS stated that she will address the regulatory system

CO CHAIR FEIGE asserted that water quality permtting tends to
be a mmjor point of contention. He noted that Alaska's |arge
m nes have been permtted under the NEPA process. He asked what
the water quality has been down-drainage fromthe | arge n nes.

M5. MATTHIAS replied that Alaska's five netal mnes are
operating very responsibly with strict operations oversight. She
revealed that the creek system prior to RDGM operations did not
sustain fish and the current treated water discharge supports
aquatic life.

She noted that FKM is in an historic placer-mning district
where a lot of water disturbance resulted in Fish Creek not
being viable to support aquatic l|life. She pointed out that
al t hough not required, FKM took it upon itself to work with the
Department of Fish and Gane to restore the wetlands around Fish
Creek in a nmulti-year process. She informed the joint conmmttee
that Fish Creek currently supports aquatic life that was not
present prior to FKM operati ons.

12: 35: 43 PM

VICE-CHAIR DYSON noted that regulatory issues have occurred
where a natural streamis water quality was far from neeting the
standards prior to a mning site and water treatnent after a
mne was in operation inproved a streamls standards, but the
federal governnent acted negatively when the streamlis output did
not neet standards. He asked for a clarification on the federal
governnment's actual standards for water quality.

M5. MATTHIAS replied that speaking in generalities about water
quality is difficult because every mne's permts are designed
specifically to look at individual geography, geology, and the
mne plan itself. She assured the joint commttee that the water
quality standards are extrenely high and that is the reason why
the permitting process is so intense. She explained that the
permtting process for a large mne occurs on the local, state,
and federal levels. She added that there are opportunities for
public comrent and stakeholder engagenent. She comented that
the permtting process should be the regulators working on the

JT. S/'H RES COMW TTEES -12- February 5, 2014



data and neki ng deci sions based on good science with regulation
consistently applied to applicants fromthe mning industry.

12:38: 13 PM

VI CE- CHAIR DYSON noted that Ms. Matthias did not indicate that
the regulatory process is working the way it should. He asked if
the federal governnent regulated with discretion to take into
account bad quality upstream water in order to make fair and
rational deci sions.

M5. MATTHIAS replied that she honestly does not have the
techni cal background to get into real specifics about the water
quality and the permtting process. She offered that additiona
information will be provided to the joint commttee.

VI CE- CHAIR DYSON responded that he does not want a detailed
answer. He asked if the process is working so that an operator
can get permts when bad quality exists initially and a mne's
wat er output inproves the natural water's quality, but the water
fails to neet arbitrary standards. He surmsed that RDM is an
exanpl e of an operation that is neeting water quality standards
by inproving a streamw th its water output.

M5. MATTHI AS answered that Al aska has five operating mnes that
have their permts and are operating responsibly on state and
federal levels. She noted that DGV was currently going through
the water quality permtting process.

VI CE- CHAI R DYSON asked for permtting specifics to be presented
of f-1ine.

[Slide 26, "Responsible Cosure.”] M. WMitthias said that
rigorous oversight doesn't stop once a mne goes into
production. She explained that |ong before a mne actually
starts production, a Reclamation Plan is approved by the
Conmi ssioner of Natural Resources. She detailed that the
Reclamation Plan also requires a conpany to provide financial
assurance that noney is available to the state if it needs to
step in to take care of reclamation and closure. Financial
assurance is assessed at the beginning of the project and
reassessed every five years or whenever there is a significant
change. She pointing out that the laws for responsible closure
apply equally to U S. and non-U. S. conpani es.

12: 40: 54 PM
[Slide 27, "Alaska's Mning Activity in 2013."] M. Crockett
expl ai ned that AMA comm ssions the MDowell Goup to produce an

JT. S/'H RES COMW TTEES -13- February 5, 2014



annual report called the Econom c Benefits of Alaska's M ning
| ndustry. She highlighted Alaska's 2013 mning activity as
fol |l ows:

e $180 mllion exploration expenditures,

e $350 million devel opnent expenditures,

e $3.4 billion in gross mneral production, and
« 300+ pl acer-m nes.

She specified that in 2013, nearly $500 mllion was spent on
exploration and developnment in Al aska. She noted an inportant
point is that exploration noney is often spent on |ocal and
state-owned fam | y-run businesses.

12:42: 05 PM

[Slide 28, "Enploynent and Payroll."] She said the mning
i ndustry believes providing jobs is one of the nbst inportant
things that the industry brings to the state. She shared 2013
Al aska m ni ng enpl oynent data as foll ows:

e 4600 people were enployed in Al aska's m nes;
* Mning jobs provide stable, year-round enpl oynent;
e« Average annual m ning wage is $100, 000; and

e Many mning jobs occur in rural areas that do not have
ot her economi c opportunities.

[Slide 29, "Benefits to Alaska Native Corporations."] She said
the benefits to the Alaska Native corporations goes to both
village and regional corporations. She inforned the |joint
conmittee that at 25 years of RDM NANA surpassed the $1 billion
royalty revenue mark in 2013 with 60 percent of the royalty
distributed to other village and regional corporations. She
asserted that mining truly does touch every corner of Al aska.

[Slide 30, "Paynments to Local Governnents."] She stated that
mnes are the largest property tax payers in the Northwest
Arctic Borough, the Fairbanks North Star Borough, and the City
and Borough of Juneau. She added that the mnes are very
important contributors to the Denali Borough and the Cty of
None. She noted that RDM is the only taxpayer in the Northwest
Arctic Borough. She summarized that mning helps pay for the
essential things that Alaskan nunicipalities rely on nobst such
as roads, anbul ances, and school funding.

[Slide 31, "Paynents to State Governnent."] Ms. Crockett
disclosed to the joint conmittee that in addition to the taxes

JT. S/'H RES COMW TTEES -14- February 5, 2014



and royalties paid, mning brings significant revenues to the
Al aska Rai | r oad, Al DEA t hr ough t he DelLong Mount ai n
Transportation System for RDMs port shipnments, Skagway Oe
Term nal, and the Al aska Mental Health Trust Authority (AVHTA).

VI CE- CHAI R DYSON asked for an expl anati on on AVHTA.

M5. CROCKETT replied that AVHTA is a state corporation that is
provided land in order to fund nental health prograns. She noted
that there are many projects outside of mning that occur on
AVHTA | and that funds nental health progranms in Al aska.

12: 44: 27 PM

M5. MATTHIAS stated that mning is a global industry and market
conditions had a negative inpact in 2013. She explained that
mning is a global industry as foll ows:

1. The mning product pricing is dictated by global narkets
and has nothing to do with the cost of production.

2. The very large exploration and mne developnment costs
require a conpany to have a very large investnent base
which tends to involve multi-nationals and gl obal players.

She said PricewaterhouseCoopers’ annual Mning Sector Report
divulged that in 2012, the top 40 mning conpanies saw their
profits plunge 49 percent with narket capitalization declining
21 percent. She pointed out that 5 out of the top 10 m ning CEGCs
| ost their jobs. She added that smaller mning conpanies' access
to investnment capital is very tight when commobdity prices are
down.

12:46: 01 PM

[Slide 32, "Monthly Copper Prices 2004-2013."] She informed the
joint commttee that copper acted as a bellwether compbdity due
to its use in electronics and wring. She explained that
copper's demand and pricing goes up when the econony is doing
well due to housing construction, autonobile purchases, and
infrastructure investnment. She noted that copper prices are also
i npacted by investors who consider where they "think" the
econony is going. She said nmacro-economc uncertainty can
depress prices even when demand for copper is high. She
referenced Slide-32 regarding copper's bellwether tendencies
when the economc downturn occurred in 2008. She added that
copper pricing increased over a couple of years during the
recovery and recently di pped down agai n.

JT. S/'H RES COMW TTEES - 15- February 5, 2014



[Slide 33, "Monthly Base Zinc and Lead Prices 2004-2013."] M.
Mat t hi as expl ained that zinc and lead prices are also fueled by
i ndustrial demand and nore generally by the global econony. She
noted that China buys about 40 percent of the world s netals.
She added that the recent decline in base netal prices is
attributed to China's slowed growh over the past few years.

[Slide 34, "Monthly Gold and Silver Prices 2004-2013."] She said
precious netals pricing has been volatile over the past ten
years. She noted that volatile comobdity pricing mnakes it
difficult to raise investnent dollars for projects that my not
come on-line for 5, 10, or 15 years.

12:48: 16 PM

[Slide 35, "Operating Costs Keep Rising, 2003-2013."] She set
forth that the one thing the mning industry does not have any
trouble predicting is that operation costs go up. She expl ained
that mning's rising operating costs include a lot of fixed
operating costs such as fuel, equipnent, tires, and enployee
salary increases. She summarized that mning's production costs
continue to go up, but the anmpunt that the conpany can earn for
the commodity it is selling is entirely dependent on volatile
gl obal markets.

12: 48: 55 PM

[Slide 36, "2012 Exploration Spending by Region."] She set forth
that Al aska exploration projects need to conpete for global
dollars with projects all over the world. She noted that m ning
requi res high upfront expenditures with high financial risk. She
poi nted out that investors pull back when comodity prices are
| ow and invest nore when comodity prices are high. She inforned
the joint commttee that the U S. attracted 8 percent of the
gl obal exploration spending in 2012 versus 20 percent in the
early 1990s. She specified that the U S. Geological Survey
(USGS) reported that Al aska gets about 13 percent of the
expl oration spending that cones into the U S

[Slide 37, "Exploration Spending Declines."] She reveal ed that
expl oration spending has declined globally as a result of |ower
cormmodity prices. She pointed out that US.  and Al aska
exploration spending has declined at a higher rate than the
gl obal average.

12:50: 11 PM
VICE-CHAIR WLSON asked if the federal governnment's stringent
envi ronment al policies are negati vely i npacti ng m ni ng

expl orati on.

JT. S/'H RES COMW TTEES -16- February 5, 2014



M5. MATTHIAS replied that any industry, including mning, wants
certainty in the regulatory process. She asserted that mning is
not suggesting that there should not be regulations and that the
regul ati on should not be strict. She set forth that regul ations
need to be efficiently applied with consi stency and transparency
for the benefit of the econony and nation. She said industries
need to know what the rules are and that the same rules are
applied to everybody. She asserted that preenptive decisions and
maki ng decisions on bad science is not good for any particul ar
i ndustry. She remarked that regulatory uncertainty is not good
for the country as whol e, because the U S. econony's strength is
based on rule of law and due process. She summarized that
regul atory uncertainty nmakes it difficult for businesses to nake
deci sions and attract investment.

12:53: 23 PM

SENATOR FAI RCLOUGH noted that Alaska's exploration spending has
declined 38 percent between 2012 and 2013. She asked if Anglo
Anmerican pulling out of the Pebble Mne Project (PMP) was taken
into consideration for the exploration spending reduction
bet ween 2012 and 2013.

M5. MATTHIAS replied that the exploration decline referred to
2013 nunbers and do not take into account Anglo American's
wi t hdrawal from the PMP. She asserted that the 2014 exploration
spendi ng nunbers will likely be quite different.

SENATOR FAI RCLOUGH responded that sone hedging on spending
nunbers may have been taken into account to reflect the PW's
change in ownership. She asked what the exploration decline
per centage m ght be from PMP's change in ownershi p.

M5. MATTHI AS replied that PMP' s exploration budget going forward
is going to be less. She said 2014 exploration spending by other
projects is not known. She surmsed that a large increase in
exploration spending is not anticipated for 2014 due to tight
commodity markets and tight exploration dollars.

12:55:15 PM
VI CE- CHAI R DYSON asked for a presentation summari zati on.

[Slide 38, Mning WII Wrk for Al aska."] M. Mtthias set forth
that Alaska is in sonewhat of a tenuous position. She said on
the positive side, Alaska is conparatively stable politically
and economcally with rich resources. She stated that Al aska's

JT. S/'H RES COMW TTEES -17- February 5, 2014



operating mnes have shown that they can operate well and
responsi bly.

VB. MATTHHAS noted that Alaska's mning industry faces
chall enges due to the federal regulatory environment, |ack of
infrastructure, and energy prices. She added that the Al aska
Legislature also faces difficult fiscal decisions. She declared
that Al aska's prosperity requires economc diversity and m ning
is a part of the solution. She conceded that mning and other
i ndustries do not conpete with oil and gas in terns of state
revenue. She asserted that the mning industry does nake a
difference on the regional |evel by providing year-round, high
paying jobs in renpte areas. She pointed out that the mning
i ndustry makes tax paynents to |ocal boroughs that provide snow
renoval equi pnent , contributes to schools and energency
services, and spends with the hundreds of Al aska busi nesses that
provi de goods and servi ces.

She summari zed as foll ows:

W need mning, we know that it can be done right, and
we believe that we are doing it right.

VI CE- CHAI R DYSON asked that CAP and AVA |let the mning industry
know that their efforts are recognized and appreciated. He
commented that some of the legislators are mning industry fans.

12:57: 28 PM

There being no further business to cone before the joint
commttee, Vice-Chair Dyson adjourned the Joint Resources
Commttee neeting at 12:57 p. m

JT. S/'H RES COMW TTEES - 18- February 5, 2014



